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Independent Auditor’s Report 

Mr. George L. Kennedy, III, CPA 
State Auditor 
State of South Carolina  
Columbia, South Carolina 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities, and each major fund of the South Carolina State Accident Fund as of and for the year ended June 
30, 2017, and the related notes to the basic financial statements, which collectively comprise the Fund’s 
basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the 
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation 
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted 
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of 
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those 
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal 
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, 
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinions. 

     



 

 

  
  

  
 

 

 
   

   
     

     
   

 

 
    

 
  

  

  

 
  

  

 

  
    

 

   
 

   

 
 

 
 

Opinions 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective 
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, and each major fund of the South 
Carolina State Accident Fund, as of June 30, 2017, and the respective changes in financial position and where 
applicable, cash flows thereof, for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America. 

Emphasis of Matter 

As described in Note 1 to the financial statements, the financial statements of the South Carolina State Accident 
Fund are intended to present the financial position and changes in financial position of only that portion of the 
governmental activities, business-type activities and each major fund of the State of South Carolina that is 
attributable to the transactions of the South Carolina State Accident Fund. They do not purport to and do not 
present fairly the financial position of the State of South Carolina as of June 30, 2017, and changes in its financial 
position for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States 
of America.  Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter. 

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s 
discussion and analysis, budgetary comparison information, and pension information on pages 3-9, 40-42, and 43 
to 44, respectively, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a 
part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who 
considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an 
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the 
required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and 
comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial 
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not 
express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us 
with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated September 27, 2017, on 
our consideration of the Fund’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with 
certain provisions, laws, regulations, contracts, grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is 
to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of 
that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That 
report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering 
the Fund’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

Columbia, South Carolina 
September 27, 2017 
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STATE ACCIDENT FUND 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

The South Carolina State Accident Fund (the “Fund”) presents a management’s discussion and analysis of its 
financial statements for fiscal year 2017. The discussion includes an overview of the financial activity for the 
year. This report is prepared in accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement 34, Basic 
Financial Statements-and Management’s Discussion and Analysis-for State and Local Governments.  This  
discussion should be read in conjunction with the Fund’s financial statements and accompanying notes. 

Overview of the Financial Statements and Financial Analysis 

The State Accident Fund was established by Section 42-7-200 of the South Carolina Code of Laws, as amended, 
to provide workers’ compensation insurance to government entities. The South Carolina Workers’ Compensation 
Uninsured Employers’ Fund was established by Section 42-7-200 to ensure payment of workers’ compensation 
benefits to injured employees whose employers have failed to acquire necessary coverage for employees. The 
South Carolina legislature, by the enactment of Section 42-7-200 of the South Carolina Code of Laws, transferred 
the operations of the South Carolina Workers’ Compensation Uninsured Employers’ Fund (UEF) to the South 
Carolina State Accident Fund (SAF) effective July 1, 2013. 

The financial statements which follow are the Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities which are 
combined statements for both SAF and UEF. Thereafter, the following individual statements are presented: 
Balance Sheet – Governmental Fund and Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance – 
Governmental Fund for UEF; Statement of Fund Net Position – Enterprise Fund; Statement of Revenues, 
Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position – Enterprise Fund; and the Statement of Cash Flows – Enterprise 
Fund for SAF.  For this discussion, we will focus on the individual statements instead of the combined statements. 

Individual Statements 

The Statement of Net Position presents information reflecting the Fund’s assets, liabilities, and net position. This 
statement provides the reader with a snapshot view at a point in time.  Net position represents the amount of total 
assets less liabilities. Assets and liabilities are shown as current and noncurrent. Current assets and liabilities are 
those with immediate liquidity or which are collectible or due within twelve months of the statement date. The 
Statement of Net Position indicates the funds available for the Fund’s operation along with the liabilities that will 
come due during the next fiscal year. Total assets on SAF’s Statement of Fund Net Position – Enterprise Fund 
increased by $13.5 million over the prior fiscal year.    As  shown  on  the  Balance  Sheet – Governmental Funds, 
UEF has $14.8 million in total assets compared to $10.5 million in the prior year.   
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State  Accident Fund 
Condensed Statements of Net  Position 

June 30, 

2017 
Business-Type 

Activities 

2016 
Business-Type 

Activities ASSETS 
Current assets $ 351,259,847 $ 337,754,753 
Capital assets, net of  accumulated depreciation                80,681               89,513 
Other  noncurrent assets              218,349             255,969 
Deferred outflows              742,766             393,795 

Total  assets and deferred outflows       352,301,643      338,494,030 

LIABILITIES 
Current liabilities       161,405,619      168,669,805 
Noncurrent liabilities       166,080,036      159,631,357 
Deferred inflows              304,174               32,262 

Total liabilities and  deferred inflows       327,789,829      328,333,424 

Net Position 
Invested in capital assets                80,681               89,513 
Unrestricted         24,431,133        10,071,093 

Total  net position $ 24,511,814 $    10,160,606 

State Accident Fund 
Uninsured  Employers' Fund 

Condensed Statements of Net Position 
June 30, 

2017 
Governmental 

Activities 

2016 
Governmental 

Activities ASSETS 
Current assets $ 14,756,699 $   10,478,065 
Capital  assets, net of  accumulated depreciation                12,912               15,114 
Deferred outflows              113,759               57,186 

Total assets and deferred  outflows         14,883,370        10,550,365 

LIABILITIES 
Current liabilities           7,185,839        10,393,906 
Noncurrent liabilities         29,110,256        24,786,333 
Deferred inflows                48,765                 4,684 

Total liabilities and deferred  inflows         36,344,860        35,184,923 

Net  Position 
Invested in capital  assets                12,912               15,114 
Unrestricted       (21,474,402)       (24,649,672) 

Total  net position $ (21,461,490) $  (24,634,558) 
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Unpaid claims liabilities are a large part of the Fund’s liabilities and have been separated into current (to be paid 
within one year) and noncurrent (to be paid after one year). SAF’s current unpaid claim liabilities decreased 
about $2.6 million and non-current increased by $6.2 million compared to the prior year. The change in the 
current and noncurrent was due an increase in the actuarial assessment of reserves. (See Change in Liabilities 
chart below.) Total liabilities decreased by $0.8 million due mostly to a change in unearned premium, offset by 
the increase in reserves. Unearned premium revenue represents the amount of premium billed, but not yet earned, 
for the future period which decreased compared to the prior year. Rates effective January 1, 2016 remain stable.  

UEF’s current and noncurrent unpaid claims liabilities increased to $35.5 million in 2017 from $34.5 million in 
fiscal year 2016. This increase was due to the actuarial assessment of reserves. (See Change in Liabilities chart 
below). 

Change in Liabilities 

The chart above shows the breakdown of liabilities and the change compared to the previous fiscal year. 
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State Accident Fund 
Condensed Statements of Activities 

June 30, 

2017 
Business-Type 

Activities 

2016 
Business-Type 

Activities 
Program revenues
 Charges for services 71,364,924 74,801,148 

Total program revenues 71,364,924 74,801,148 

General revenues
 Interest earnings 2,756,211 3,423,777 

Total general revenues 2,756,211 3,423,777 

Total revenues 74,121,135 78,224,925 

Program expenses
 Workers compensation claims 59,769,927 66,139,676 

Total expenses 59,769,927 66,139,676 

Excess of revenues over expenses 14,351,208 12,085,249 

Change in net position 14,351,208 12,085,249 

Net position, beginning of year 10,160,606 (1,924,643) 

Net position, end of year $ 24,511,814 $ 10,160,606 

 
State Accident  Fund 

Uninsured Employers'  Fund 
Condensed  Statements  of  Activities 

June  30, 

2017 
Governmental 

Activities 

2016 
Governmental 

Activities 
General revenues 
Reduction  in  claims  and  awards  liability                   -         1,757,964 
Payments  from  State  agencies        11,297,571       10,400,000 
Total  general  revenues        11,297,571       12,157,964 

Total  revenues        11,297,571       12,157,964 

Program  expenses 
Claims  and  awards  liability         1,051,000                   -
Workers'  compensation claims         7,073,503         7,202,826 
Total  expenses         8,124,503         7,202,826 

Excess  of  revenues  over  expenses         3,173,068         4,955,138 

Change  in net  position         3,173,068         4,955,138 

Net  position,  beginning of  year      ( 24,634,558)      (29,589,696) 

Net  position,  end  of  year $    (21,461,490) $   (24,634,558) 
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Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position and Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, 
and Changes in Fund Balance 

This statement represents operating revenues and expenses, as well as the non-operating revenues and expenses 
during the operating year. The purpose of this statement is to present the reader with information relating to 
monies received and expenses paid during the year.     

SAF is a proprietary fund entity; therefore, the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 
has been prepared on the accrual basis.   Statements  prepared using  the  accrual basis recognizes revenues when 
earned and expenses when incurred. SAF’s revenue comes primarily from premium income for workers’ 
compensation insurance coverage provided to state agencies and political subdivisions. The major expenses are 
from incurred claim liabilities, which include medical costs and lost wages paid to injured workers, and the 
change in anticipated future payments. SAF is a quasi-governmental organization whose normal operation is 
similar to that of other property and casualty insurance companies. The SAF receives no general fund 
appropriations. 

The operating revenue in SAF’s statement includes primarily premium billed based on policyholder payroll but 
also effected by their experience modifier. The experience modifier can either increase or decrease the 
policyholder’s premium. As a result, operating revenue decreased $3.4 million in fiscal year 2017. The non-
operating revenue is dependent on the interest rates received on investments with the State Treasurer’s Office.   

The operating expenses include administrative expenses, claims paid, and claims incurred during the year.   Fiscal 
year 2017 had an increase in reserves of $3.3 million (which increased the claims incurred). This increase in 
reserves compared to an $11 million increase last fiscal year resulted in approximately $6.3 million decrease in 
operating expenses when compared to the prior fiscal year. The administrative cost ratio, the amount of premium 
dollars used to operate the Fund, during fiscal year 2017 is 6.8%. The South Carolina State Accident Fund 
continues to have one of the lowest administrative cost ratios in the workers’ compensation industry. 

UEF is a governmental fund entity; therefore, the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund 
Balance has been prepared on the modified accrual basis. Statements prepared using the modified accrual basis 
recognize revenues when available and measurable while expenses are recognized in the period in which they are 
incurred. Funds to support UEF come from taxes collected by the Department of Insurance and the Workers’ 
Compensation Commission.  The expenses are primarily the payment of claims. 

The charts below show that during the past two fiscal years 82-84% of expenses have been paid directly to injured 
workers or medical providers on behalf of the injured worker. 
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State Accident Fund 
Condensed  Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net  Position  

Enterprise Fund 
June 30, 

2017 2016 
Operating revenues $          71,364,924 $             74,801,148 
Operating expenses             59,769,927                 66,139,676 

Operating income             11,594,997                  8,661,472 

Nonoperating revenues               2,756,211                  3,423,777 

Change in  net position             14,351,208                12,085,249 

Net position, beginning of  year             10,160,606                ( 1,924,643) 

Net position, end of  year $          24,511,814  $             10,160,606 

 
State Accident  Fund 

Uninsured Employers' Fund 
Condensed Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and  Changes in  Fund Balances 

Governmental Funds 
June 30, 

2017 2016 
Payments  from  State Agencies $         11,297,571 $         10,400,000 
Expenditures              7, 039,734              7,186,072 
Net change in fund balance             4, 257,837              3,213,928 

Fund balance,   beginning of  year           10, 441,839              7,227,911 

Fund balance, end of year  $         14,699,676 $         10,441,839 
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Capital Asset and Debt Activity 

Capital assets decreased by $11,034, net of depreciation. The additions to assets included $19,472 for two air 
conditioning units placed in the Computer Server Room and $12,303 for a Postage Machine. There were no other 
significant additions or retirement of capital assets during the fiscal year. The Fund had no changes in credit 
rating or debt limitations that may affect future financing. 

Economic Outlook 

A decade ago, the South Carolina State Accident Fund faced challenges related to operating losses, an increasing 
deficit, and dwindling assets which were insufficient to meet current and long-term obligations. Thereafter, an 
economic downturn and the effects of the Great Recession severely and adversely impacted the premium revenue 
that provides the operational income for the Fund. Fortunately, in 2005 management initiatives were 
implemented to better position the Fund to meet these financial challenges through focused efforts to promote 
operational efficiency, quality case management, and effective premium pricing. Those efforts have paid off as 
Fiscal Year 2017 marks the twelfth consecutive year of performance and financial success for the South Carolina 
State Accident Fund which concluded the year with a net income of $14,351,208. Importantly, this record of 
continuing success has established the financial stability that last year allowed the Fund to eliminate a deficit that 
had existed since 1999. 

As indicators from job creation and unemployment rates to consumer confidence and business investment reflect 
a healthier and improving business climate, SAF stands prepared for the new challenges of a growing economy.  
Through a combination of disciplined risk selection, unrivaled claim and medical cost management, and careful 
use of our professional resources, SAF will continue to explore and develop new and innovative methods of 
decreasing operating expenses while maintaining low claim costs, stable premium pricing, and high customer 
satisfaction. Working with our actuaries and reinsurers, we will continue the ongoing efforts to improve our 
overall financial standing while at the same time establishing and maintaining adequate reserves to ensure the 
long-term financial viability of the Fund.  We are also keenly aware of the diversity of our policyholders.  It is our 
goal to understand the challenges and needs of all our policyholders – small and large - and assist them in 
meaningful ways to reduce their overall workers’ compensation costs while promoting a safe work environment.  
By maximizing efficiency without sacrificing quality customer service, we believe we have achieved this goal 
with resulting rate and premium stabilization. 

Through good or challenging economic times, the State Accident Fund remains committed to providing stable, 
long-term workers’ compensation coverage to state, county, and local governments as cost-effectively as possible.  
At SAF, all we do is workers’ compensation and our emphasis on higher efficiencies, lower costs, and improved 
delivery of services remains the key to our ongoing success. Expertise, responsive service, and long-term value – 
all ensure that the State Accident Fund is well-positioned to fulfill its commitments to our policyholders and their 
employees long into the future, and that is good news for South Carolina.  
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SOUTH CAROLINA STATE ACCIDENT FUND 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

AS OF JUNE 30, 2017 

Primary Government 

Governmental 
Activities 

Business-Type 
Activities Total 

Assets and deferred outflows of resources 

Current assets: 
Cash and cash equivalents $  14,697,303 $  290,551,473 $  305,248,776 
Premiums receivable                     7,997          58,012,736            58,020,733 
Accrued interest receivable                         -            1,062,696              1,062,696 
Claims recoveries and reimbursement receivables, net                         -            1,248,905              1,248,905 
Prepaid expenses 
Total current assets 

                 
          

 51,399               384,037                 435,436
 14,756,699        351,259,847          366,016,546 

Non-current assets: 
Investment in reinsurance annuity contract, net                         -               218,349                 218,349 
Capital assets, net 
Total non-current assets 

                 
                 

 12,912                 80,681                   93,593
 12,912               299,030                 311,942 

Total assets            14,769,611        351,558,877          366,328,488 

Deferred outflows of resources 
Contributions to retirement plan after measurement date                   37,868               262,004                 299,872 
Difference between projected and actual investment experience                   68,652               426,938                 495,590 
Difference between expected and actual retirement plan experience 

Total deferred outflows of resources 
                   
               

 7,239                 53,824                   61,063 
 113,759               742,766                 856,525 

Liabilities 

Current liabilities: 
Accounts payable $  15,026 $  204,942 $  219,968 
Accrued compensated absences and related benefits                   27,816               101,866                 129,682 
Accrued payroll and related liabilities                   41,997               287,305                 329,302 
Accrued refundable premiums                         -            2,518,366              2,518,366 
Advanced under reinsurance annuity contract                         -               115,593                 115,593 
Unearned premium revenue                         -          64,926,547            64,926,547 
Unpaid claims liability and claims adjustment 
Total current liabilities 

            
            

 7,101,000          93,251,000          100,352,000
 7,185,839        161,405,619          168,591,458 

Noncurrent liabilities: 
Net pension liability                 693,166            5,197,454              5,890,620 
Accrued compensated absences and related benefits                   13,090               119,582                 132,672 
Unpaid claims liability and claims adjustment 
Total non-current liabilities 

          
          

 28,404,000        160,763,000          189,167,000
 29,110,256        166,080,036          195,190,292 

Total liabilities            36,296,095        327,485,655          363,781,750 

Deferred inflows of resources 
Difference between expected and actual retirement plan experience                        764                   5,633                     6,397 
Change in proportionate share of net pension liability 

Total deferred inflows of resources 
                 
                 

 48,001               298,541                 346,542 
 48,765               304,174                 352,939 

Net position 

Net investment in capital assets                   12,912                 80,681                   93,593 
Unrestricted 

Total net position 

        

$ 

 (21,474,402) 

 (21,461,490)

        

$ 

 24,431,133 

 24,511,814

             2,956,731 

$  3,050,324 

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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SOUTH CAROLINA STATE ACCIDENT FUND 

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

Year ended June 30, 2017 

Functions/Programs Expenses 

Program Revenues 

Charges for 

Services 

Net Revenue (Expense)  and Change in Net Position 

Primary Government 

Governmental 

Activities 

Business-Type 

Activities Totals 

Primary Government 
Governmental Activities: 

Workers compensation $ 7,073,503 $ - $ (7,073,503) $ - $ (7,073,503) 

Claims and awards 1,051,000 - (1,051,000) - (1,051,000) 

Total Governmental Activities 8,124,503 - (8,124,503) - (8,124,503) 

Business-Type Activities: 

State Accident Fund 59,769,927 71,364,924 - 11,594,997 11,594,997 

Total Business-Type Activities 59,769,927 71,364,924 - 11,594,997 11,594,997 

Total Primary Government 67,894,430$ 71,364,924$ (8,124,503) 11,594,997 3,470,494 

General revenues: 

Interest/investment income - 2,756,211 2,756,211 

Payments from State agencies 11,297,571 - 11,297,571 
Total general revenues 11,297,571 2,756,211 14,053,782 

Change in net position 3,173,068 14,351,208 17,524,276 

Net position beginning of year (24,634,558) 10,160,606 (14,473,952) 

Net position end of year $ (21,461,490) $ 24,511,814 $ 3,050,324 

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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SOUTH CAROLINA STATE ACCIDENT FUND 
BALANCE SHEET 

GOVERNMENTAL FUND 
As of June 30, 2017 

Uninsured Employers 
Fund 

Assets 
Current assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Claims accounts receivable 
Prepaid items 

Total assets 

$ 14,697,303 
7,997 

51,399 
14,756,699 

Liabilities 
Accounts payable 
Accrued payroll related liabilities 

Total liabilities 

15,026 
41,997 

57,023 

Fund balances 

Fund Balances: 
Restricted for workers' compensation claims 
Non-spendable 

Total fund balances 

14,648,277 
51,399 

14,699,676 

Total liabilities and fund balances $ 14,756,699 

to the Statement of Net Position 
Reconciliation of the Governmental Fund Balance Sheet 

Governmental fund balance $ 

Gross capital assets 24,723
 Accumulated depreciation (11,811) 

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and, therefore, are not reported in 
the funds. 

14,699,676 

12,912

 Net pension liability 
Deferred inflows of resources for contributions 

after the retirement plan’s measurement date 
Deferred outflows of resources for differences 

between projected and actual investment earnings 
Deferred outflows of resources for differences 

            between expected and actual retirement plan experience 
Deferred inflows of resources for differences between 

expected and actual retirement plan experience 
Deferred inflows of resources for differences between 

changes in proportionate share 

    The net pension liability and related deferred inflows and outflows of resources are not due 
    and payable in the current year and are not included in the fund financial statements, but are
    included in the governmental activities of the Statement of Net Position.

(693,166)

37,868

68,652

7,239

(764)

(48,001)

Long-term liabilities, including compensated absences and claims and awards are not due and payable in 
the current period and, therefore, are not reported in the funds. 

Compensated absences 
Claims and awards 

40,906
35,505,000 (35,545,906) 

Net position of governmental activities $ (21,461,490) 

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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SOUTH CAROLINA STATE ACCIDENT FUND 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 

GOVERNMENTAL FUND 
Year ended June 30, 2017 

Uninsured Employers Fund
Expenditures 

Workers' Compensation Uninsured Employers' Fund claims $ 6,325,942 
Personnel services 550,167 
Contractual services 106,898 
Rent and insurance 32,596 
Supplies and materials 7,669 
Other expenditures 16,462 

Total expenditures 7,039,734 

Revenue 

Payments from Workers' Compensation Commission 1,277,755 
Payments from South Carolina Department of Insurance 10,019,816 

Total revenue 11,297,571 

Net change in fund balance 4,257,837 

Fund balance, beginning of year 10,441,839 

Fund balance, end of year $ 14,699,676 

Reconciliation of the Governmental Fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and 
Changes in Fund Balance to Statement of Activities 

Net change in governmental fund balance $ 4,257,837 
Governmental funds report capital outlays as exepnditures. However, in the statement of activities 
the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation 
expense. 

Expenditures for capital assets 1,947 

Depreciation expense (4,149) (2,202) 

Amortization of pension expense is reported as expenses in the statement of activitues (17,740) 

Adjustment to compensated absenses and claims and awards reported in the statement of activities 
does not require the use of current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as 
expenditures in governmental funds. 

Compensated absences (13,827) 
Claims and awards (1,051,000) (1,064,827) 

Change in net position $ 3,173,068 

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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STATEMENT OF FUND NET POSITION 
ENTERPRISE FUND 

As of June 30, 2017 

State Accident 
Fund 

Assets and deferred outflows of resources 
Current assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 290,551,473 
Premiums receivable 58,012,736 
Accrued interest receivable 1,062,696 
Claims recoveries and reimbursement receivables, net 1,248,905 
Prepaid expenses 384,037 

Total current assets 351,259,847 

Noncurrent assets: 
Investment in reinsurance annuity contract, net 218,349 
Capital assets, net 80,681 

Total noncurrent assets 299,030 
Total assets 351,558,877 
Deferred outflows of resources 

Contributions to retirement plan after measurement date 262,004 
Difference between projected and actual investment experience 426,938 
Difference between expected and actual retirement plan experience 53,824 

Total deferred outflows of resources 742,766 

Total assets and deferred outflows of resources 352,301,643 

Liabilities and deferred inflows of resources 
Current liabilities: 

Accounts payable 204,942 
Accrued compensated absences and related benefits 101,866 
Accrued payroll and related liabilities 287,305 
Accrued refundable premiums 2,518,366 
Advanced under reinsurance annuity contract 115,593 
Unearned premium revenue 64,926,547 
Unpaid claims liability and claims adjustment expenses payable within one year 93,251,000 

Total current liabilities 161,405,619 

Noncurrent liabilities: 
Net pension liability 5,197,454 
Accrued compensated absences and related benefits, net 119,582 
Unpaid claims liability and claims adjustment expenses, net 160,763,000 

Total noncurrent liabilities 166,080,036 

Total liabilities 327,485,655 

Deferred inflows of resources
   Difference between expected and actual retirement plan experience 5,633
 Change in proportionate share of net pension liability 298,541 

Total deferred inflows of resources 304,174 
Total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources 327,789,829 

Net position 
Net investment in capital assets 80,681 
Unrestricted 24,431,133 

Total net position $ 24,511,814 

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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SOUTH CAROLINA STATE ACCIDENT FUND 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION 

ENTERPRISE FUND 

Year ended June 30, 2017 
State Accident 

Fund 
Operating Revenues 

Premiums, net of reinsurance $  71,364,924 

Operating Expenses 

Claims          51,594,652 

Second Injury Fund assessment            3,326,201 

Administrative: 

Personnel services and employee benefits            3,598,367 

Contract services               714,278 

Rent and insurance               322,318 

Supplies and materials                 54,976 

Depreciation                 38,660 

Amortization expense - reinsurance annuity contract premium                 37,620 

Other expenses                 82,855 

           4,849,074 

         59,769,927 

         11,594,997 

Total administrative expenses 

Total operating expenses 

Operating income 

Nonoperating Revenues 

Interest/investment income            2,756,211 

         14,351,208 Change in Net Position 

Net Position at Beginning of Year 

Net Position at End of Year 

         10,160,606 

$  24,511,814 

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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SOUTH CAROLINA STATE ACCIDENT FUND 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

ENTERPRISE FUND 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

State Accident 
Fund 

Cash Flows from Operating Activities 
Cash received from State agencies  $ 59,807,278 
Cash received from other entities  12,879,834 
Payments for claims  (47,993,652) 
Payments for salaries and related benefits              (3,493,879) 
Payment of Second Injury Fund Assessment to other State agency  (3,275,832) 
Payments for administrative expenses  (1,547,088) 

Net cash provided by operating activities  16,376,661 

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities 
Purchases of capital assets  (29,828) 

Net cash used in capital and related financing activities  (29,828) 

Cash Flows from Investing Activities 
Interest/investment income received  2,247,461 

Net cash provided by investing activities               2,247,461 

Net change in cash and cash equivalents  18,594,294 

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year           271,957,179 

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year  $ 290,551,473 

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities: 

Operating income  $ 11,594,997 

Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash provided by 
operating activities: 

Depreciation and amortization  76,280 

Decrease in premiums receivable  5,863,927 
Decrease in claims recoveries and reimbursement receivables  106,683 
Increase in prepaid expenses  (372,660) 
Decrease in recoverable under reinsurance annuity contract  43,179 
Increase in deferred outflows of resources                 (349,265) 
Increase in accounts payable  50,369 
Increase in accrued compensated absences and related benefits  (31,932) 
Increase in accrued payroll and related liabilities  26,993 
Decrease in accrued refundable premiums                   (63,059) 
Decrease in unearned premium revenue  (4,628,542) 
Increase in deferred inflows of resources                  272,206 
Increase in net pension liability  186,485 
Increase in estimate of unpaid claim liability               3,601,000 

Net cash provided by operating activities  $ 16,376,661 

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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South Carolina State Accident Fund 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies   

Reporting Entity – The South Carolina State Accident Fund (the “Fund”), is part of the State of South Carolina 
(the “State”) and is included in the State’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. The Fund is made up of the 
State Accident Fund (the “SAF”) and the Uninsured Employers Fund (the “UEF”). 

The SAF was established by Section 42-7-10 of the Code of Laws of South Carolina, as amended, to provide 
workers’ compensation insurance coverage to State entities. Although the State is the SAF’s predominant 
participant, counties, municipalities, and other political subdivisions of the State may elect to participate. The 
State assumes the full risk for the covered claims. The SAF is responsible for investigating, adjusting, and paying 
workers’ compensation claims as awarded by the Workers’ Compensation Commission for job related accidental 
injury, disease, or death to employees of participants.  

The UEF was established by Section 42-7-200. Effective July 1, 2013 the UEF has the powers, duties, obligations 
and responsibilities of the Second Injury Fund that relate to the South Carolina Workers’ Compensation 
Uninsured Employers’ Fund which are devolved upon the South Carolina Workers’ Compensation Uninsured 
Employers’ Fund within the State Accident Fund. 

The Fund is administered by a director, appointed by the Governor, with the advice and consent of the Senate, for 
a term of six years, however, the current director has been in the position for more than six years. The 
accompanying financial statements present the financial position, results of operations, and cash flows solely of 
the Fund and do not include any other departments, institutions, component units, etc. of the State.  

The core of the financial reporting entity is the primary government which has a separately elected governing 
body. As required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“GAAP”), the 
financial reporting entity includes both the primary government and all of its component units. Component units 
are legally separate organizations for which the elected officials of the primary government are financially 
accountable. In turn, component units may have component units. 

An organization other than a primary government may serve as a nucleus for a reporting entity when it issues 
separate financial statements.  That organization is identified herein as a primary entity. 

An organization can also be a component unit of another entity if the exclusion of that organization would be 
misleading to the users of the primary entity’s financial statements. The organization is fiscally independent if it 
holds all three of those powers including 1) determine its budget without another government having the authority 
to approve and modify that budget, 2) levy taxes or set rates or charges without approval by another government, 
and 3) issue bonded debt without approval by another government. Based on the criteria, the Fund has determined 
it is not a component of another entity and it has no component units. 

The budget, personnel, procurement, and other laws of the State and the policies and procedures for State agencies 
are applicable to the activities of the Fund.  

Fund Accounting – The Fund uses funds to report its financial position and the results of its operations. Fund 
accounting is designed to demonstrate legal compliance and to aid financial management by segregating 
transactions related to certain government functions or activities. 

A fund is a separate fiscal and accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts recording cash and other 
financial resources, together with related liabilities and residual equities or balances and changes therein which 
are segregated to carry on specific activities or attain certain objectives in accordance with applicable regulations, 
restrictions, or limitations.  
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South Carolina State Accident Fund 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Fund Accounting (continued) - The SAF is an enterprise fund of the proprietary fund type.  The SAF is  
considered an internal service fund of the State within the State’s Consolidated Annual Financial Report. Such 
funds account for the financing of goods and services that are used primarily by the State. The UEF is a special 
revenue fund. 

Basis of Accounting 

Government-wide Financial Statements - In the government-wide Statement of Net Position and Statement of 
Activities, both governmental and business-type activities are presented using the accrual basis of accounting. 
Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recorded when the 
liability is incurred or economic asset used. 

The Statement of Net Position discloses the financial position of the Fund and the Statement of Activities 
demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses by function of the Fund’s programs are offset by program 
revenues. 

Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program revenues 
include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use or directly benefit from goods, services, or 
privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting 
the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Other items not properly included 
among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues. 

Fund Financial Statements - The UEF, a special revenue fund, uses the modified accrual basis of accounting. 
The UEF is supported by payments from the South Carolina Department of Insurance and the South Carolina 
Workers' Compensation Commission. The revenues are recognized when they become available and measurable.  
Available means those amounts that will be received within one year of the date of the financial statements. The 
payments from the South Carolina Department of Insurance and the South Carolina Workers' Compensation 
Commission are recorded when received in cash because they are not considered available until the Fund requests 
the payment. The request from the Fund is the event that is considered necessary to trigger the recognition of the 
payment. 

The accounting policies of the SAF conform to generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”) applicable to 
proprietary activities as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”), the recognized 
standard-setting body for GAAP for all state governmental entities. Proprietary fund entities use the accrual basis 
of accounting.  

The SAF individual financial statements are prepared on the same basis of accounting as the government-wide 
financial statements; therefore, there is no reconciliation between the fund and government-wide statements. 

The Fund implemented GASB No. 76, The Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles for State and 
Local Governments, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2017. The objective of GASB  76  is to  identify the  
hierarchy of GAAP. The GAAP hierarchy consists of the sources of accounting principles used to prepare 
financial statements of state and local governmental entities in conformity with GAAP and the framework for 
selecting those principles. This Statement reduces the GAAP hierarchy to two categories of authoritative GAAP 
and addresses the use of authoritative and nonauthoritative literature in the event that the accounting treatment for 
a transaction or other event is not specified within a source of authoritative GAAP. There was no impact to the 
net position or change in net position as a result of implementing this standard. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents – Cash and cash equivalents represent cash on deposit with the State’s Treasurer, 
cash in banks, and cash invested in various instruments by the State Treasurer as part of the State’s internal cash 
management pool (the “Pool”).  
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South Carolina State Accident Fund 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Cash and Cash Equivalents (continued) – Because the Pool operates as a demand deposit account, amounts 
invested in the Pool are classified as cash and cash equivalents. The Pool includes some long-term investments 
such as obligations of the United States and certain agencies of the United States, obligations of the State and 
certain of its political subdivisions, certificates of deposit, collateralized repurchase agreements, and certain 
corporate bonds.  

The Pool consists of a general deposit account and several special deposit accounts. The State records each 
fund’s equity interest in the general deposit account; however, all earnings on that account are credited to the 
General Fund of the State. Investments held by the Pool are carried at fair value. Interest earned on the agency’s 
special deposit account is posted to the agency’s account at the end of each month and is retained by the agency. 
The Fund records and reports its deposits in the general deposit account at cost. The Fund reports its deposits in 
the special deposit accounts at fair value. Interest earnings are allocated based on the percentage of the Fund’s 
accumulated daily income receivable to the total interest receivable of the Pool. Reported investment income 
includes interest earnings, realized gains/losses and unrealized gains/losses on investments in the Pool arising 
from changes in fair value. Realized gains and losses are allocated daily and are included in the accumulated 
income receivable. Unrealized gains and losses are allocated at year-end based on the percentage ownership in 
the Pool. 

Information pertaining to carrying amounts, fair value, and credit risk of the State Treasurer’s investments is 
disclosed in the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (“CAFR”) of the State. 

Capital Assets – Capital assets are recorded at cost at the date of acquisition. The Fund follows capitalization 
guidelines established by the State. All land is capitalized, regardless of cost. The Fund capitalizes movable 
personal property with a unit value in excess of $5,000 and a useful life in excess of two years and intangible 
assets including software costing in excess of $100,000. Routine repairs and maintenance are charged to 
operating expenses in the year in which the expense was incurred.  

Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets, generally 3 
to 10 years.  

Unpaid Claims Liability – The Fund establishes unpaid claims liabilities based on estimates of the ultimate cost 
of claims that have been reported but not settled, and of claims that have been incurred but not reported. The 
amount accrued includes estimated specific incremental claims adjustment expenses. Estimated amounts of 
salvage and subrogation and reinsurance recoverable, if any, on both settled and unsettled claims have been 
deducted from the liability for unpaid claims to the extent reasonably estimable. In addition, to the extent 
reasonably estimable, the liability for unpaid claims has been adjusted for amounts to be recovered or reimbursed 
from participants who retain the risk of loss for specific periods. This includes amounts recoverable from the State 
of South Carolina for state agency claims prior to July 1, 1986. See Note 8 for further explanation. Claims 
liabilities for claims of the South Carolina Department of Transportation (“DOT”) prior to January 1, 1994, are 
not included in the State Accident Fund’s claims liability. See below and Note 4 for further information. Because 
actual claims costs depend on such complex factors as inflation, changes in doctrine of legal liability, and damage 
awards, the process used in computing claims liabilities does not necessarily result in an exact amount. Claims 
liabilities are recomputed annually as of fiscal year end using a variety of actuarial and statistical techniques to 
produce current estimates that reflect recent settlements, claim frequency, and other economic and social factors. 
While management believes that the amount is adequate, the ultimate liability may be in excess of or less than the 
amounts provided. 
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South Carolina State Accident Fund 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Unpaid Claims Liability (continued) - The methods for making such estimates and for establishing the resulting 
liability are continually reviewed, and any adjustments are reflected in current earnings. A provision for inflation 
in the calculation of estimated future claims costs is implicit in the calculation because reliance is placed both on 
actual historical data that reflect past inflation and on other factors that are considered to be appropriate modifiers 
of past experience. Adjustments to claims liabilities are charged or credited to expense in the periods in which 
they are made.  

DOT and the South Carolina Department of Public Safety (“DPS”) managed their own workers’ compensation 
claims prior to the State’s restructuring in 1993. When they became policyholders, the Fund agreed to provide 
claim services for their claims with a date of injury prior to January 1, 1994 for DOT and August 1, 1993 for DPS.  
Because the Fund was not the insurer and had not collected premiums to cover these losses, the agencies 
reimbursed the Fund for the cost of these claims. In the 1998-1999 Appropriations Bill 700, Proviso 44.4 stated, 
“(SAF: Workers’ Compensation Claims) from the funds in the Workers’ Compensation Trust Fund, the Fund 
shall purchase an annuity for the purpose of funding the future obligation for workers’ compensation claims filed 
prior to restructuring by South Carolina Department of Highways and Public Transportation employees.”   

After June 30, 1998, the Fund was no longer reimbursed, as originally agreed upon. Instead, it used the funds 
received from the annuity purchased under the proviso to pay these claims. This annuity is being amortized over 
the life of the contract in proportion to annuity proceeds received.  See Note 4 for further discussion. 

Reinsurance – The SAF has obtained reinsurance coverage to reduce its exposure to losses on insured events. 
Losses in excess of $1,000,000 from an insured event are covered up to limits based on the type of injury as set by 
the worker’s compensation statutes of the South Carolina Code of Laws, with the SAF retaining the risk for the 
first $1,000,000 of loss. Reinsurance permits recovery of a portion of losses from reinsurers, although it does not 
discharge the primary liability of the SAF as direct insurer of the risks reinsured. The SAF does not report 
reinsured risks as liabilities, unless it is probable that those risks will not be covered by reinsurers. The prior 
policy covered losses in excess of $1,000,000. The reinsurance coverage also reduces its exposure to losses on 
insured events related to State owned aircrafts in excess of $1,000,000 per occurrence up to the limit of 
$9,000,000. Reinsurance expense was $2,895,272 and $3,143,069 as of June 30, 2017 and 2016, respectively, 
and is netted against premiums revenue in the accompanying financial statements.   

Recognition of Premium Revenue, Receivables, and Unearned Revenue – Premiums are recognized as 
revenue on a pro rata basis over the policy term. Policies are billed and issued on both the fiscal year and calendar 
year basis. Premiums are based on an actuarial method and are currently adjusted so that over a reasonable period 
of time expected revenues, including investment income, and anticipated expenses will be approximately equal.  
In addition, premium revenue includes accrued premium adjustments for additional premiums owed by 
policyholders as determined based on actual payrolls for the policy period which are in excess of estimated 
premiums billed. This premium revenue was based on estimated payroll costs. Revenue is reduced for refunds 
payable. Estimated premiums receivable and refunds payable are recorded as of year-end for future anticipated 
premium adjustments for the policy years which end within the Fund’s fiscal year. A receivable is recorded at the 
time the annual estimated premium is billed, even though some/all of the amounts may not be currently due. 
Unearned revenue is recognized to the extent that the premiums billed and not yet received are for future periods. 
In addition, unearned revenue is recognized for unearned premiums received. 

Budget Policy – The Fund’s budget is included in annual appropriations approval process by the South Carolina 
General Assembly (the “General Assembly”). However, there are no funds from the General Fund provided to 
UEF. The Fund is supported through taxes collected by the Department of Insurance and the Workers’ 
Compensation Commission. The Appropriations Act, as enacted, becomes the legal operating budget for the 
Fund. The Appropriations Act authorizes expenditures from the General Fund of the State and authorizes 
expenditures of total funds. The General Assembly enacts the budget through passage of specific line-item 
appropriations by program within budgetary unit, within budgetary fund category, the General Fund or other 
budgeted funds. 
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South Carolina State Accident Fund 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Budget Policy (continued) - Budgetary control is maintained at the line-item level of the entity. Agencies may 
process disbursement vouchers in the State’s budgetary accounting system only if enough cash and appropriation 
authorization exist. 

Transfers of funds may be approved by the Department of Administration or by the agency as set forth in the 
2017 Appropriations Act proviso 117.9 as follows: Agencies are authorized to transfer appropriations within 
programs and within the agency with notification to the Executive Budget Office and the State Comptroller 
General. No such transfer may exceed twenty percent of the program budget. Transfers from personal services 
accounts or from other operating accounts may be restricted to any level set by the Board. 

Current legislation states that the General Assembly intends to appropriate all monies to operate State government 
for the current fiscal year. Any unexpended appropriations as of June 30 automatically lapse on July 31 unless 
authorization is received from the General Assembly to carry over the funds to the ensuing fiscal year. State law 
does not precisely define the budgetary basis of accounting. For each fiscal year, the level of legal control for 
each agency is reported in a publication by the State Comptroller General. The State’s annual budget is prepared 
primarily on the modified accrual basis of accounting with several exceptions, principally the cash basis for 
payroll expenses and certain non-State appropriations revenue. 

The SAF’s budget includes administrative expenses and specifically excludes claims expense and the Second 
Injury Fund assessment. Amounts to be expended for capital assets are also budgeted. Expenses prepared on the 
accrual basis do not vary significantly from the budgetary basis. In accordance with GAAP applicable to 
business-type activities, a comparison of actual revenues and expenses to the budgeted amounts has not been 
presented. 

Statement of Cash Flows – For purposes of cash flows, the Fund considers all highly liquid investments with a 
maturity of three months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents.  

Compensated Absences – Generally, all permanent full-time State employees and certain part-time employees 
scheduled to work at least one-half of the Fund’s month are entitled to accrue and carry forward at calendar year-
end maximums of 180 days sick leave and of 45 days annual vacation leave. Upon termination of State 
employment, employees are entitled to be paid for accumulated unused annual vacation leave up to the maximum, 
but are not entitled to any payment for unused sick leave. The compensated absences liability includes accrued 
annual leave and compensatory holiday and overtime leave earned for which the employees are entitled to paid 
time off or payment at termination. The Fund calculates the compensated absences liability based on recorded 
balances of unused leave for which the employer expects to compensate employees through paid time off or cash 
payments at termination. That liability is determined by using fiscal year-end current salary costs and the cost of 
the salary-related benefit payments. The net change in the liability is recorded in the current year in the personal 
services and employee benefits expense category. 

Operating and Nonoperating Revenues and Expenses – The Fund distinguishes operating revenues and 
expenses from nonoperating items.  Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and 
delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The Fund’s primary 
operating revenues are from premium revenues. Operating expenses include the cost of services, administrative 
expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported 
as nonoperating revenues and expenses. Nonoperating revenues include interest/investment income and other 
revenues. 
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South Carolina State Accident Fund 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Net Position – The Fund reports the following classifications of net position in accordance with GASB Statement 
No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position: 

Net investment in capital assets: This represents the Fund’s total investment in capital assets, net of 
depreciation and outstanding debt obligations, if any, related to those capital assets. To the extent debt 
has been incurred but not yet expended for capital assets, such amounts are not included as a component 
of invested in capital assets, net of related debt and depreciation.  

Restricted net position: Restricted net position consists of assets with constraints placed on the use of 
those assets either by external groups such as creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of 
other governments; or law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. As of June 30, 
2017, the Fund did not have any restricted net position. 

Unrestricted net position: Unrestricted net position represents the remainder of the Fund’s liabilities in 
excess of assets excluding net position reported in other categories. 

The Fund’s policy is to first apply restricted resources when an expense is incurred for purposes for 
which both restricted and unrestricted net position is available. 

Fund Balance – The UEF reports the following classifications of fund balance, as applicable, in accordance with 
GASB Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions. 

Nonspendable fund balance - The nonspendable fund balance classification includes amounts that 
cannot be spent because they are either not in spendable form or legally or contractually required to be 
maintained intact. The “not in spendable form” criterion includes items that are not expected to be 
converted to cash, for example, inventories and prepaid amounts. It also includes the long-term amount 
of loans and notes receivable, as well as other assets. 

Restricted fund balance - The restricted fund balance classification includes amounts that are either 
restricted externally by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments or 
restricted by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. All of the UEF’s fund 
balance, with the exception of the nonspendable fund balance mentioned previously, is presented as 
restricted as all fund balance is required to be used for worker’s compensation claims. 

Committed fund balance - The committed fund balance classification includes amounts that can only be 
used for specific purposes pursuant to constraints imposed by formal action of the UEF’s highest level of 
decision-making authority, which is the General Assembly. The General Assembly would have to pass a 
formal resolution to commit fund balance. Those committed amounts cannot be used for any other 
purpose unless the UEF removes or changes the specified use by taking the same type of action it 
employed to previously commit those amounts. Committed fund balances also incorporate contractual 
obligations to the extent that existing resources in the fund have been specifically committed for use in 
satisfying those contractual requirements. The UEF recognizes committed fund balances that have been 
approved for specific purposes by the UEF’s General Assembly before the fiscal year end. As of June 
30, 2017, the UEF did not have any committed fund balance. 
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South Carolina State Accident Fund 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Fund Balance (continued) – 

Assigned fund balance - The assigned fund balance classification includes amounts that are constrained 
by the UEF’s intent to be used for specific purposes but are not restricted or committed. The authority 
for making an assignment is not required to be the UEF’s highest level of decision-making authority and 
as such, the nature of the actions necessary to remove or modify an assignment does not require the 
UEF’s highest level of authority. The UEF’s Director can choose to assign fund balance for a specific 
purpose. Assigned fund balance amounts in the Fund’s financial statements represent amounts approved 
by the General Assembly to be transferred and spent after year end. In the special revenue fund, 
assigned fund balances represent amounts to be spent for specific purposes. As of June 30, 2017, the 
UEF did not have any assigned fund balance. 

Based on the UEF’s policies regarding fund balance classifications as noted above, the UEF considers amounts 
that are restricted, committed, or assigned to be spent when the corresponding expenditure that has been 
designated by the General Assembly or donors has been made.   

Use of Estimates – The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to 
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of 
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and 
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. The most significant 
estimate affecting these financial statements is the unpaid claims liability. 

Note 2. Risk Management 

Insurance Coverage – The Fund, an administrative agency, is exposed to various risks of loss and maintains 
State or commercial insurance coverage for each of those risks. Management believes such coverage is sufficient 
to preclude any significant uninsured losses for the covered risks. There were no significant reductions in 
insurance coverage from prior years except for the increase in the base before reinsurance is received as discussed 
in Note 1. The cost of settled claims and claim losses has not exceeded this coverage in any of the past three 
years. The Fund pays insurance premiums to itself and certain other State agencies to cover risks that may occur 
in normal operations. The insurers promise to pay to or on behalf of the insured for covered economic losses 
sustained during the policy period in accordance with insurance policy and benefit program limits. 

State management believes it is more economical to manage certain risks internally and set aside assets for claim 
settlement. Several State funds accumulate assets and the State itself assumes substantially all risks for the 
following type of claims: 

1. Claims of State employees for unemployment compensation benefits. This type of claim is handled 
through the South Carolina Department of Employment and Workforce;  

2. Claims of covered employees for workers’ compensation benefits for job-related illnesses or injuries. This 
type of claim is handled by the Fund; 

3. Claims of covered public employees for health and dental insurance benefits. This type of claim is 
handled by South Carolina Public Employee Benefit Authority (“PEBA”) Insurance Benefits; and  

4. Claims of covered public employees for long-term disability and group-life insurance benefits. This type 
of claim is handled through PEBA-Insurance Benefits. Employees have health coverage through the 
State’s self-insured plan. All of the other coverages listed above are through the applicable State self-
insured plan except dependent and optional life premiums are remitted to commercial carriers.  
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South Carolina State Accident Fund 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 2. Risk Management (continued) 

Insurance Coverage (continued) 

The Fund and other entities pay premiums to the State’s Insurance Reserve Fund (“IRF”) which issues policies, 
accumulates assets to cover the risks of loss, and pays claims incurred for covered losses related to the following 
assets, activities, and/or events: 

1. Theft of, damage to, or destruction of assets – building contents;  
2. General tort claims; and  
3. Data processing equipment.  

The IRF is a self-insurer and purchases reinsurance to obtain certain services and specialized coverage and to 
limit losses in the areas of property insurance. Also, the IRF purchases reinsurance for catastrophic property 
insurance. Reinsurance permits partial recovery of losses from reinsurers, but the IRF remains primarily liable.  
The IRF’s rates are determined actuarially. State agencies and other entities are the primary participants in the 
State’s Health and Disability Insurance Fund and in the IRF. 

The Fund has not reported an estimated claims loss expense and the related liability at June 30, 2017, based on the 
requirements of GASB Statements No. 10, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Risk Financing and Related 
Insurance Issues, and No. 30, Risk Financing Omnibus – An Amendment of GASB Statement No. 10, which state 
that a liability for claims must be reported only if information prior to issuance of the financial statements 
indicates that it is probable that an asset has been impaired or a liability has been incurred on or before June 30, 
2017, and the amount of loss is reasonably estimable. In management’s opinion, claims losses in excess of 
insurance coverage, if any, are unlikely and, if incurred, would be insignificant to the Fund’s financial position.  
Furthermore, there is no evidence of asset impairment or other information to indicate that a loss should be 
recorded. Therefore, no loss accrual has been recorded. 

Note 3. Deposits and Investments 

Cash and cash equivalents consist of deposits under the control of the State Treasurer, who by law, has sole 
authority for investing State funds and deposits under the control of the Fund. However, as authorized by the 
State Treasurer’s Office, certain funds used to pay claims are deposited with financial institutions. 

Deposits – State law requires full collateralization of all State Treasurer’s bank balances. The State Treasurer 
must correct any deficiencies in collateral within seven days. With respect to investments in the State’s Pool, all 
of the State Treasurer’s investments are insured or registered or are investments for which the securities are held 
by the State or its agents in the State’s name. Information pertaining to the carrying amounts, market values, 
credit and other risks as required by GASB Statement No. 40, Deposit and Investment Risk Disclosures, of the 
State Treasurer’s investments is disclosed in the CAFR of the State. Copies of this report may be obtained from 
the South Carolina Office of the Comptroller General, 1200 Senate Street, 305 Wade Hampton Office Building, 
Columbia, South Carolina 29201 or by visiting the Comptroller General’s website at http://www.cg.sc.gov. 

At June 30, 2017, cash and cash equivalents for the UEF and SAF were $14,697,303 and $290,551,473, 
respectively. At June 30, 2017, the bank balance in financial institutions and in the Pool were $14,844,068 and 
$291,599,732 respectively. The bank balances were fully covered by insurance and collateralized with securities 
held by the Fund, or by its agent in the Fund’s name.  
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South Carolina State Accident Fund 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 3. Deposits and Investments (continued) 

Investments – All of the Fund’s investments are stated at amortized cost as described below. Therefore, GASB 
statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application, is not applicable to the Fund as the type of 
investment held by the fund is scoped out of GASB No. 72. The Fund had an investment in reinsurance annuity 
contract of $218,349 at June 30, 2017. Further details of this investment are found in Note 4. 

Note 4. Investment in Reinsurance Annuity Contract 

Under the 1993 Restructuring Act, the DOT and the DPS were created and were charged with responsibilities of 
the former Department of Highways and Public Transportation effective July 1, 1993. Proviso 44.4 of the 1998-
1999 Appropriation Act passed by the General Assembly required the Fund to purchase an annuity for the 
purpose of funding the future obligation for workers’ compensation claims filed prior to restructuring by the 
Department of Highways and Public Transportation employees using funds from the Workers’ Compensation 
Trust Fund. While the State believes the annuity will provide funding adequate to cover this liability, the Fund 
has ultimate responsibility to pay these claims should the annuity funding be inadequate. On March 11, 1999 the 
Fund purchased a Type One annuity that will pay a fixed amount quarterly for a period of forty years. The 
annuity was effective as of January 1, 1999. The SAF received its first quarterly annuity payment on April 5, 
1999. For the year ended June 30, 2017 the SAF paid approximately $16,900 of the DOT claims covered by this 
annuity. 

For the year ended June 30, 2017, the amount of approximately $218,000 is shown on the statement of net 
position, current and noncurrent, as recoverable under reinsurance annuity contract, represents amounts due under 
the annuity that will be collected in the future for cumulative claims payments in excess of cumulative annuity 
receipts. The estimated future claims for DOT are $378,000 which is not included in the unpaid claims liability 
and claims adjustment expenses payable on the statement of net position.  

Under the terms of the annuity, the SAF will receive 160 quarterly  payments.  For the first forty payments  the  
SAF will receive $30,091 per quarter, the next forty payments will be for $15,022, the next forty payments will be 
for $3,726, and the last forty payments will be for $2,364. Total amount to be received under the annuity will be 
approximately $2,048,000. 

The total price of the annuity was $1,282,294 and was paid in a single premium. The amount of the annuity to 
purchase was determined actuarially. The amount remaining to be received by the Fund at June 30, 2017 was 
$198,534. 

The liability for these claims is not reported by either the Fund or the DOT because the State estimates that the 
proceeds from the annuity contract will provide adequate funding to pay these claims and the risk of loss is 
remote. The annuity is being amortized over the life of the annuity in proportion to annuity proceeds received. 
The amount of amortization charged for the year ended June 30, 2017 was $37,620, and is included as 
amortization expense in the statement of revenues, expenses and changes in fund net position.  

Note 5. Premiums Receivable 

Premiums receivable at June 30, 2017 consist of amounts receivable from the following:  

County and municipal governments and agencies $  4,026,631 
State agencies 53,986,105 

$ 58,012,736 

The majority of premiums receivable represent billings for future periods which have not been collected as of 
year-end. The unearned portion of the premium is presented as a liability. The premiums receivable should be 
collected within one year, and as such, management has determined that no allowance for uncollectible accounts 
is considered necessary. 
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South Carolina State Accident Fund 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 6. Capital Assets 

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2017 was as follows: 

Beginning 
Balance 

July 1, 2016 Increases  Decreases  

Ending 
Balance 

June 30, 2017 
 

 
        

       

     
 

        
 

Governmental Activities: 
Capital assets, being depreciated: 

Computer & technical equipment $ 7,094 $ 1,947 $ - $ 9,041 
Office furniture & equipment 15,682 - - 15,682 

Total capital assets being depreciated 22,776 1,947 - 24,723 

Less accumulated depreciation for: 
Computer & technical equipment (3,350) (2,581) - (5,931) 
Office furniture & equipment (4,312) (1,568) - (5,880) 

Total accumulated depreciation (7,662) (4,149) - (11,811) 

Governmental activities capital assets, net $ 15,114 $ (2,202) $ - $ 12,912 

Beginning 
Balance 

July 1, 2016  Increases 
 

 
            

       

   

  

 

   
 

 

 
 

    
    

  
   

     
 

 
 
 

Decreases  

Ending 
Balance 

June 30, 2017 
Business-type Activities: 
Capital assets, being depreciated: 

Computer & technical equipment $ 1,066,595 $ 17,525 $ - $ 1,084,120 
Office furniture & equipment 117,116  12,303 - 129,419  

Total capital assets being depreciated 1,183,711 29,828 - 1,213,539 

Less accumulated depreciation for: 
Computer & technical equipment (1,016,842) (29,846) - (1,046,688) 
Office furniture & equipment (77,356) (8,814) - (86,170) 

Total accumulated depreciation (1,094,198) (38,660) - (1,132,858) 
Business-type  activities capital assets, net $ 89,513 $ (8,832) $ - $ 80,681 

Depreciation expense was $38,660 and $4,149 for Business-Type and Governmental respectively for the year 
ended June 30, 2017. 

Note 7. Accrued Refundable Premiums 

Policyholders are billed annually for estimated premiums based on the policyholder’s estimated payroll. After the 
policy period ends, policyholders submit the details of the actual salaries paid, and the Fund adjusts the premium 
based on the actual payroll and a rating modifier based on claims experience. The amount the Fund owed 
policyholders for estimated premiums in excess of actual adjusted premiums at June 30, 2017 was $694,475 for 
county and municipal policyholders. An additional $1,823,891 was due to State agencies, for a total of 
$2,518,366. 
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South Carolina State Accident Fund 
Notes to Financial Statements 

s Liability and Claims Adjustment Expenses  Note 8. Unpaid Claim

Business-Type Activities 

The amount accrued for unpaid claims liability and claims adjustment expenses is an actuarially determined 
amount, based on the SAF’s historical claims expenses adjusted for current factors, for the estimated ultimate cost 
of settling claims for events which occurred on or before year-end but were unpaid at the end of the year. To the 
extent claims were incurred on behalf of state agencies prior to July 1, 1986, reimbursement will be due from the 
State when the claims are paid. Estimated amounts recoverable from subrogation have been deducted from the 
claims liability.  
 

The estimated  reimbursement due from the State for claims prior  to July  1, 1986, which is included in unpaid  
claims liability and claims liability  adjustment expense, is as follows:  

Due within one year   $ 115,000  
Due after one year  510,000  

Total  $  625,000  

The amounts accrued for unpaid claims liability and claims adjustment expenses, net of amounts recoverable from 
the State, for the year ended June 30, are as follows:  

2017 
Unpaid claims liability and claim adjustment expenses 

payable at beginning of year $ 250,413,000 
Current year claims and  changes in estimates 51,594,652 
Claims payments (47,993,652) 

Total unpaid claims liability and claim adjustment  
expenses payable at the end of year $ 254,014,000 

This claims liability is further categorized as follows: 
State Agencies $ 193,050,640 
Counties and Municipalities 60,963,360 

Total $ 254,014,000 

Governmental Activities 

The amount accrued for unpaid claims liability and claims adjustment expenses is an actuarially determined 
amount, based on the UEF’s historical claims expenses adjusted for current factors, for the estimated ultimate cost 
of settling claims for events which occurred on or before year-end but were unpaid at the end of the year. 
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South Carolina State Accident Fund 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 8. Unpaid Claims Liability and Claims Adjustment Expenses (continued) 
 

The amounts accrued for unpaid claims liability  and claims adjustment expenses for the year ended June 30, are 
as follows: 
 

  2017  
Unpaid claims liability  and claim  adjustment expenses   

payable at beginning of year $   34,454,000 
Current year claims and  changes in estimates   7,393,063 
Claims payments  (6,342,063)  
 
Total unpaid claims liability and claim  adjustment    

expenses payable at the end of year   $       35,505,000 
 

Note 9. Second Injury Fund Assessment 
 

The Fund  is required to  pay  an annual assessment to the Second Injury  Fund (“SIF”) of the State.  The assessment  
  is usually billed in the first quarter of the fiscal year and is based on a specified percentage of total claims paid by 

the SIF for pro rata claims paid for all years prior to June 30, 2013.  The SIF handles claims for workers who have 
permanent physical impairments and incur subsequent disability from injury by accidents arising out of and in the 
course of employment. The assessment for fiscal year 2017 was $3,275,832. The SAF receives reimbursements 
of claims expense from the SIF as well. The total amount recovered during fiscal year 2017 was $2,286,812, 
which is reported as a reduction of claims expense.  

As of June 30, 2013, the SIF is no longer taking new claims into consideration for payment. Balances for future 
assessments will solely be based on claims incurred prior to June 30, 2013. 

Note 10. Pension Plan 

The South Carolina Public Employee Benefit Authority (“PEBA”), which was created July 1, 2012, administers 
the various retirement systems and retirement programs managed by its Retirement Division. PEBA has an 11-
member Board of Directors, appointed by the Governor and General Assembly leadership, which serves as co-
trustee and co-fiduciary of the systems and the trust funds. By law, the State Fiscal Accountability Authority 
(“SFAA”), which consists of five elected officials, also reviews certain PEBA Board decisions regarding the 
funding of the South Carolina Retirement Systems (“Systems”) and serves as a co-trustee of the Systems in 
conducting that review. 

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to 
pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the Systems and additions 
to/deductions from the Systems fiduciary net position have been determined on the accrual basis of accounting as 
they are reported by the Systems in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”). For this 
purpose, revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recognized when incurred. Benefit and refund 
expenses are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the terms of the plan. Investments are reported 
at fair value. 

PEBA issues a Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (“CAFR”) containing financial statements and required 
supplementary information for the Systems' Pension Trust Funds. The CAFR is publicly available through the 
Retirement Benefits' link on PEBA's website at www.peba.sc.gov, or a copy may be obtained by submitting a 
request to PEBA, 202 Arbor Lake Drive, Columbia, SC 29233. PEBA is considered a division of the primary 
government of the State of South Carolina and therefore, retirement trust fund financial information is also 
included in the comprehensive annual financial report of the State. 
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South Carolina State Accident Fund 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 10. Pension Plan (continued) 

Plan Descriptions 

• The South Carolina Retirement System (“SCRS”), a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension 
plan, was established effective July 1, 1945, pursuant to the provisions of Section 9-1-20 of the South 
Carolina Code of Laws for the purpose of providing retirement allowances and other benefits for employees 
of the state, its public school districts, and political subdivisions. 

• The State Optional Retirement Program (“State ORP”) is a defined contribution plan that is offered as an 
alternative to certain newly hired state, public school, and higher education employees. State ORP participants 
direct the investment of their funds into a plan administered by one of four investment providers. 

• The Fund does not have employees that participate in the Police Officers Retirement System (“PORS”). 

Membership 

Membership requirements are prescribed in Title 9 of the South Carolina Code of Laws. A brief summary of 
the requirements under each system is presented below. 

• SCRS - Generally, all employees of covered employers are required to participate in and contribute to the 
system as a condition of employment. This plan covers general employees and teachers and individuals newly 
elected to the South Carolina General Assembly beginning with the November 2012 general election. An 
employee member of the system with an effective date of membership prior to July 1, 2012, is a Class Two 
member. An employee member of the system with an effective date of membership on or after July 1, 2012, is 
a Class Three member. 

• State ORP - As an alternative to membership in SCRS, newly hired state, public school, and higher 
education employees and individuals newly elected to the S.C. General Assembly beginning with the 
November 2012 general election have the option to participate in the State Optional Retirement Program 
(State ORP), which is a defined contribution plan. State ORP participants direct the investment of their funds 
into a plan administered by one of four investment providers. PEBA assumes no liability for State ORP 
benefits. Rather, the benefits are the liability of the investment providers. For this reason, State ORP programs 
are not considered part of the retirement systems for financial statement purposes. Employee and Employer 
contributions to the State ORP are at the same rates as SCRS. A direct remittance is required from the 
employers to the member's account with investment providers for the employee contribution (8 percent) and a 
portion of the employer contribution (5 percent). A direct remittance is also required to SCRS for the 
remaining portion of the employer contribution (5.91 percent) and an incidental death benefit contribution 
(0.15 percent), if applicable, which is retained by SCRS. 

Benefits 

Benefit terms are prescribed in Title 9 of the South Carolina Code of Laws. PEBA does not have the authority 
to establish or amend benefit terms without a legislative change  in the code of  laws.  Key  elements of  the  
benefit calculation include the benefit multiplier, years of service, and average final compensation. A brief 
summary of the benefit terms for each system is presented below. 
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South Carolina State Accident Fund 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 10. Pension Plan (continued) 

• SCRS - A Class Two member who has separated from service with at least five or more years of earned 
service is eligible for a monthly pension at age 65 or with 28 years credited service regardless of age. A 
member may elect early retirement with reduced pension benefits payable at age 55 with 25 years of service 
credit. A Class Three member who has separated from service with at least eight or more years of earned 
service is eligible for a monthly pension upon satisfying the Rule of 90 requirement that the total of the 
member's age and the member's creditable service equals at least 90 years. Both Class Two and Class Three 
members are eligible to receive a reduced deferred annuity at age 60 if they satisfy the five- or eight-year 
earned service requirement, respectively. An incidental death benefit is also available to beneficiaries of 
active and retired members of employers who participate in the death benefit program. 

The annual retirement allowance of eligible retirees or their surviving annuitants is increased by the lesser of 
one percent or five hundred dollars every July 1. Only those annuitants in receipt of a benefit on July 1 of the 
preceding year are eligible to receive the increase. Members who retire under the early retirement provisions 
at age 55 with 25 years of service are not eligible for the benefit adjustment until the second July 1 after 
reaching age 60 or the second July 1 after the date they would have had 28 years of service credit had they not 
retired. 

The retirement allowance of eligible retirees or their surviving annuitants is increased by the lesser of one 
percent or five hundred dollars every July 1. Only those annuitants in receipt of a benefit on July 1 of the 
preceding year are eligible to receive the increase. 

Contributions 

Contributions are prescribed in Title 9 of the South Carolina Code of Laws. Upon recommendation by the 
actuary in the annual actuarial valuation, the PEBA Board may adopt and present to the State Fiscal 
Accountability Authority for approval an increase in the SCRS employer and employee contribution rates, but 
any such increase may not result in a differential between the employee and total employer contribution rate 
that exceeds 2.9 percent of earnable compensation for SCRS. An increase in the contribution rates adopted by 
the Authority may not provide for an increase of more than one-half of one percent in any one year. If the 
scheduled employee and employer contributions provided in statute or the rates last adopted by the Authority 
are insufficient to maintain a thirty year amortization schedule of the unfunded liabilities of the plans, the 
Authority shall increase the contribution rates in equal percentage amounts for the employer and employee as 
necessary to maintain the thirty-year amortization period; and, this increase is not limited to one-half of one 
percent per year. 
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South Carolina State Accident Fund 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 10. Pension Plan (continued) 

Contributions (continued) 

Required employee contribution rates are as follows: 

Fiscal Year 2017 Fiscal Year 2016 
SCRS 

Employee Class Two 8.66% 8.16% 
Employee Class Three 8.66% 8.16% 

State ORP Employee 8.66% 8.16% 

Required employer contribution rates1 are as follows: 

SCRS 
Employer Class Two 11.41% 10.91% 
Employer Class Three 11.41% 10.91% 
Employer Incidental Death Benefit 0.15% 0.15% 

State ORP Employee 
Employer Contribution2 11.41% 10.91% 
Employer Incidental Death Benefit 0.15% 0.15% 

1 Calculated on earnable compensation as defined in Title 9 of the South Carolina Code of Laws 
2 Of this employer contribution of 11.41% of earnable compensation, 5% of earnable compensation must be 
remitted by the employer directly to the ORP vendor to be allocated to the member’s account with the 
remainder of the employer contribution remitted to SCRS. 

Actuarial Assumptions and Methods 

Actuarial valuations involve estimates of the reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of 
occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include assumptions about future employment, mortality, 
and future salary increases. Amounts determined during the valuation process are subject to continual revision 
as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. South 
Carolina state statute requires that an actuarial experience study be completed at least once in each five-year 
period. An experience report on the Systems was most recently issued as of July 1, 2015. 

The June 30, 2016, total pension liability, net pension liability, and sensitivity information were determined 
by the consulting actuary, Gabriel, Roeder, Smith and Company (“GRS”) and are based on the July 1, 2015, 
actuarial valuations, as adopted by PEBA and SFAA which utilized membership data as of July 1, 2015. The 
total pension liability was rolled-forward from the valuation date to the plan’s fiscal year ended June 30, 
2016, using generally accepted actuarial principles. Information included in the following schedules is based 
on the certification provided by GRS. 
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South Carolina State Accident Fund 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 10. Pension Plan (continued) 

The following provides a summary of the actuarial assumptions and methods used in the July 1, 2015, 
valuations for SCRS. 

SCRS 
Actuarial cost method Entry age 

Actuarial assumptions: 
Investment rate of return 7.5% 
Projected salary increases 3.5% to 12.5% 

 (varies by service) 
Includes inflation at 2.75% 
Benefit adjustments lesser of 1% or $500 

annually 

The post-retiree mortality assumption is dependent upon the member's job category and gender. This 
assumption includes base rates which are automatically adjusted for future improvement in mortality using 
published Scale AA projected from the year 2000. Assumptions used in the July 1, 2015 valuations for SCRS 
are as follows: 

 Former Job Class 
Educators and Judges 

Males 
RP-2000 Males (with White 
Collar adjustment) multiplied 
by 110%  

 Females 
RP-2000 Females (with White 
Collar adjustment) multiplied 
by 95%  

General Employees and Members of 
the General Assembly 

RP-2000 Males multiplied by 
  100% 

RP-2000 Females multiplied by 
  90% 

Public  Safety, Firefighters and 
members of the South Carolina 
National Guard 

 

 

    
 

 

 

RP-2000 Males (with Blue 
Collar adjustment) multiplied 
by 115%  

RP-2000 Females (with Blue 
Collar adjustment) multiplied 
by 115%  

Net Pension Liability 

The net pension liability (“NPL”) is calculated separately for each system and represents that particular 
system's total pension liability determined in accordance with GASB No. 67 less that System's fiduciary net 
position. The Fund’s proportional share of the NPL amounts for SCRS is presented below as of June 30,: 

System 
SCRS 

Total Pension 
Liability 

$45,356,214,752 

 Plan Fiduciary  
Net Position 

 $23,996,362,354  

Fund’s Net 
Pension 
Liability  

$ 5,890,620  
 

  
      

 
     

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Plan Fiduciary Net Position 
as a Percentage of Total 

Pension Liability 
52.9% 

The total pension liability is calculated by the Systems' actuary, and each plan's fiduciary net position is 
reported in the Systems' financial statements. The net pension liability is disclosed in accordance with the 
requirements of GASB No. 67 in the Systems’ notes to the financial statements and required supplementary 
information. Liability calculations performed by the Systems’ actuary for the purpose of satisfying the 
requirements of GASB Nos. 67 and 68 are not applicable for other purposes, such as determining the plans’ 
funding requirements. 
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South Carolina State Accident Fund 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 10. Pension Plan (continued) 

The Fund’s proportionate share of the net pension liability for SCRS is as follows for the years ended June 30, 
2017 and 2016: 

System 
SCRS 

 June 30, 2017  
  0.027578%  

June 30, 2016  
 0.029917%   

 
  

 
 

 

 

  
  

  
 

 
 

 

 

  
   

   
     

  
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Change 
(0.002339%) 

The Fund’s change in proportionate share of the net pension liability and related deferred inflows and 
outflows of the resources will be amortized into pension expense over the respective average remaining 
service lives the system. 

Long-term Expected Rate of Return 

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments, as used in the July 1, 2015 actuarial 
valuations, is based upon the 30 year capital market outlook at the end of the third quarter 2015. The actuarial 
long-term expected rates of return represent best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major 
asset class and were developed in coordination with the investment consultant for the Retirement System 
Investment Commission (“RSIC”) using a building block approach, reflecting observable inflation and 
interest rate information available in the fixed income markets as well as Consensus Economic forecasts. The 
actuarial long-term assumptions for other asset classes are based on historical results, current market 
characteristics and professional judgment. 

The RSIC has exclusive authority to invest and manage the retirement trust funds' assets. As co-fiduciary of 
the Systems, statutory provisions and governance policies allow the RSIC to operate in a manner consistent 
with a long-term investment time horizon. The expected real rates of investment return, along with the 
expected inflation rate, form the basis for the target asset allocation adopted annually by the RSIC. For 
actuarial purposes, the long-term expected rate of return is calculated by weighting the expected future real 
rates of return by the target allocation percentage and then adding the actuarial expected inflation which is 
summarized in the table on the following page. For actuarial purposes, the 7.50 percent assumed annual 
investment rate of return used in the calculation of the total pension liability includes a 4.75 percent real rate 
of return and a 2.75 percent inflation component. 
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South Carolina State Accident Fund 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 10. Pension Plan (continued) 

Asset Class  
Target Asset  

Allocation 

Expected 
Arithmetic Real 
Rate of Return 

Long Term 
Expected 

Portfolio Real 
Rate of Return 

            
      

    
   
  

    
     
     

    
  

  
     

    
      
          
    

    
  
    

 
 

 

   

  
 

  
 

 
 

 

 
   

   

 

   
  

 
 

 
 

Global Equity 43.0% 
Global Public Equity 34.0 6.52% 2.22% 
Private Equity 9.0 9.30 0.84 

Real Assets 8.0 
Real Estate 5.0 4.32 0.22 
Commodities 3.0 4.53 0.13 

Opportunistic 20.0 
GTAA/Risk Parity 10.0 3.90 0.39 
HF (Low Beta) 10.0 3.87 0.39 

Diversified Credit 17.0 
Mixed Credit 5.0 3.52 0.17 

      Emerging Markets Debt 5.0 4.91 0.25 
Private Debt 7.0 4.47 0.31 

Conservative Fixed Income 12.0 
Core Fixed Income 10.0 1.72 0.17 
Cash and Short Duration (Net) 2.0 0.71 0.01 

Total Expected Real Return 100.0% 5.10 
Inflation for Actuarial Purposes 2.75 
Total Expected Nominal Return 7.85% 

Discount Rate 

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.50 percent. The projection of cash flows 
used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from participating employers in SCRS will be 
made based on the actuarially determined rates based on provisions in the South Carolina State Code of Laws. 
Based on those assumptions, each System's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all 
projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return 
on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total 
pension liability. 

Sensitivity Analysis 

The following table presents the collective net pension liability of the participating employers calculated 
using the discount rate of 7.50 percent, as well as what the employers' net pension liability would be if it were 
calculated using a discount rate that is 1.00 percent lower (6.50 percent) or 1.00 percent higher (8.50 percent) 
than the current rate. 

Sensitivity of the Proportional Share of Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate 

System 
1.00% Decrease 

(6.50%) 
Current Discount Rate 

(7.50%) 
1.00% Increase 

(8.50%) 
SCRS $ 7,348,387 $     5,890,620 $ 4,677,084 
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South Carolina State Accident Fund 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 10. Pension Plan (continued) 

Deferred Outflows (Inflows) of Resources 

For the year ended June 30, 2017, the Fund recognized pension expense of $410,517 which is included in 
personnel services and employee benefits in the accompanying SAF financial statements and personnel 
services in the accompanying UEF financial statements. At June 30, 2017, the Fund reported deferred 
outflows (inflows) of resources related to pensions from the following sources:  

Deferred 
Outflows of 

 Resources  
   

 
 

     

  
  

  
 

   
 

 

  
 
  

     
 

 

  
  

   

 

   

 

 

Deferred Inflows  
of Resources 

Pension contributions subsequent to measurement date $ 299,872  $ -
Differences in actual and expected retirement plan 61,063 (6,397) 
experience 
Net differences between projected and actual earnings 

on plan investments 495,590  -
Change in proportionate share of net pension liability 

and differences between actual contributions and the 
Fund’s proportionate share of contributions - (346,542) 

$ 856,525 $ (352,939) 

The Fund reported $299,872 as deferred outflows of resources related to contributions subsequent to the 
measurement date that will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended June 30, 
2018. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows (inflows) of resources will be recognized in pension 
expense in future years. The following schedule reflects the amortization of the Fund’s proportional share of 
the net balance of remaining deferred outflows (inflows) of resources at June 30, 2017. Average remaining 
services lives of all employees provided with pensions through the pension plans at June 30, 2017 was 4.116 
years for SCRS. 

Measurement Period 
Ending June 30,  

Fiscal Year Ending 
June 30,  SCRS  

2017 2018  $             14,328  
2018  2019  (759)  
2019  2020  92,089  
2020  2021  97,951  

   
 $       203,904 

 

The Fund’s contributions to SCRS and ORP for the fiscal years ended June  30,  2017,  2016,  and 2015 were 
$299,872, $312,197, and $322,786, respectively.  

 
Note 11. Post-Employment Benefits Other than Pensions 
 

Plan Description 
In accordance with the  South Carolina  Code of Laws and the annual Appropriations Act, the State provides post-
employment health and dental and long-term  disability  benefits to retired State and school district employees and  
their covered dependents.  The Fund contributes to  the South Carolina Retiree Health Insurance Trust Fund 
(“SCRHITF”) and the South Carolina Long-Term  Disability Insurance Trust Fund  (“SCLTDITF”), cost-sharing 
multiple employer defined benefit post-employment healthcare, and long-term disability  plans administered by 
the Insurance Benefits Division (“IB”), a part of the PEBA. 
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South Carolina State Accident Fund 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 11. Post-Employment Benefits Other than Pensions (continued) 

Generally, retirees are eligible for the health and dental benefits if they have established at least ten years of 
retirement service credit. For new hires beginning employment May 2, 2008 and after, retirees are eligible for 
benefits if they have established 25 years of service for 100% employer funding and 15 through 24 years of 
service for 50% employer funding. Benefits become effective when the former employee retires under a State 
retirement system. Basic Long-Term Disability (“BLTD”) benefits are provided to active state, public school 
district, and participating local government employees approved for disability.   

Funding Policies 
Section 1-11-710 of the South Carolina Code of Laws of 1976, as amended, requires these post-employment and 
long-term disability benefits be funded through annual appropriations by the General Assembly for active 
employees to the IB and participating retirees to the PEBA, except for the portion funded through the pension 
surcharge and provided from the other applicable sources of the IB, for its active employees who are not funded 
by State General Fund appropriations. 

Employers participating in the RMP are mandated by State statute to contribute at a rate assessed each year by the 
Office of the State Budget, 5.33% of annual covered payroll for 2017, 5.00% of annual covered payroll for 2016, 
and 5.00% of annual covered payroll for 2015. The IB sets the employer contribution rate based on a pay-as-you-
go basis. The Fund paid approximately $146,000, $150,000, $148,000 applicable to the surcharge included with 
the employer contribution for retirement benefits for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2017, 2016, and 2015, 
respectively. BLTD benefits are funded through a person’s premium charged to State agencies, public school 
districts, and other participating local governments. The monthly premium per active  employee  paid to  IB was  
$3.22 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017, 2016, and 2015. 

Effective May 1, 2008 the State established two trust funds through Act 195 for the purpose of funding and 
accounting for the employer costs of retiree health and dental insurance benefits and long-term disability 
insurance benefits. The SCRHITF is primarily funded through the payroll surcharge. Other sources of funding 
include additional State appropriated dollars, accumulated IB reserves, and income generated from investments. 
The SCLTDITF is primarily funded through investment income and employer contributions. 

A copy of the separately issued financial statements for the benefit plans and the trust funds may be obtained by 
writing to PEBA Insurance Benefits Division, 202 Arbor Drive, Columbia, SC 29233. 

Note 12. Deferred Compensation Plans 

Several optional deferred compensation plans are available to State employees and employers of its political 
subdivisions. Certain employees of the Fund have elected to participate. The multiple-employer plans, created 
under Internal Revenue Code Sections 457, 401 (k), and 403 (b), are administered by third parties and are not 
included in the CAFR of the State. Compensation deferred under the plans is placed in trust for the contributing 
employees.  

The State has no liability for losses under the plans. Employees may withdraw the current value of their 
contributions when they terminate State employment. Employees may also withdraw contributions prior to 
termination if they meet requirements specified by the applicable plan. 

Note 13. Operating Leases 

The Fund leases its office space and computers from an unrelated party. The lease for the rental of office space is 
month to month and the rental rate is $21,488 per month. The Fund had one lease for computers that expired in 
April 1, 2017, and the rental rate was $2,560 per month. The Fund entered into a new lease for computers and 
computer equipment beginning April 1, 2017 for 36 months through March 31, 2020 and the rental rate is $2,740 
per month. The Fund also leases office equipment and vehicles under short-term and/or cancelable operating 
leases. In the normal course of business, operating leases are generally renewed or replaced by other leases.  
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South Carolina State Accident Fund 
Notes to Financial Statements 

 Note 13. Operating Leases (continued) 

Operating leases are generally payable on a monthly basis. The future minimum rental payments under lease 
agreements is as follows: 

Fiscal year ended June 30,: 
2018 $   32,878 
2019   32,878 
2020   24,660 

$ 90,416 

Operating lease expenses for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017, were approximately $258,000 for office space 
and were approximately $31,000 for office equipment. 

Note 14. Long-term Liabilities 

Changes in long-term liabilities for the year ended June 30, 2017 are as follows: 

           Due within 
June 30, 2016 Additions  Reductions June 30, 2017  one year 

Governmental Activities          
  Accrued compensated           
    absences and related            

     benefits  $ 27,079  $         41,713  $     (27,886)  $            40,906  $         27,816 
   Unpaid  claims liability           

    and claims adjustment           
    expenses payable  34,454,000  7,393,063   (6,342,063)  35,505,000   7,101,000

         Total  $ 34,481,079  $  7,434,776  $(6,369,949)   $      35,545,906  $    7,128,816 

 
          Due within  

June 30, 2016 Additions  Reductions June 30, 2017  one year 

Business-type Activities          
  Accrued compensated           
    absences and related            
     benefits  $        253,380    $      150,158    $      (182,090)    $        221,448    $     101,866 

   Unpaid claims liability           
    and claims adjustment           
    expenses payable  

         Total  

  250,413,000 

$ 250,666,380 

 51,594,652 

   $ 51,744,810 

  (47,993,652)

  $ (48,175,742) 
    254,014,000 
  $  254,235,448 

 93,251,000 

  $  93,352,866 

 

 

 

 

  
  

     
   

   
  

 
 
 

Note 15. Transactions with State Entities 

The Fund has significant transactions with the State and various State agencies. Services received at no cost from 
State agencies include maintenance of certain accounting records and payroll and disbursement processing from 
the Comptroller General’s Office; check preparation, banking, and investment functions from the State Treasurer; 
legal services from the Attorney General’s Office; and record storage from the Department of Archives and 
History. Other services received at no cost include pension plan administration, insurance plans administration 
provided by PEBA; audit services provided by the Office of the State Auditor; and personnel management, 
assistance in the preparation of the State Budget, property management and record keeping, review and approval 
of certain budget amendments, procurement services, and other centralized functions provided by the SFAA. 
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South Carolina State Accident Fund 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 15. Transactions with State Entities (continued) 

Total revenues from other State agencies based on the agency classification chart prepared by the South Carolina 
Comptroller General’s Office were as follows for the Fund for the year ended June 30, 2017: 

Higher Education $ 13,734,473 
Administration of Justice 13,613,660 
Transportation 8,860,278 
Health and Environment 8,115,050 
Education 4,866,930 
General Government 2,984,269 
External   2,152,868 
Social Services 1,872,513 
Resource and Economic Development 1,740,458 
Unemployment 143,593 
Other Business Types 92,863 
Housing Authority 31,648 

$ 58,208,603 

The Fund had financial transactions with various State agencies during the year ended June 30, 2017. Significant 
payments were made to PEBA for pension and insurance plan contributions and to the SFAA for vehicle rental, 
insurance coverage, office supplies, printing, telephone, interagency mail, and data processing services. Payments 
were also made for unemployment coverage for employees to the Department of Employment and Workforce. 
The amount of expenses applicable to these transactions is not readily determinable. The Fund provided no 
services free of charge to other State agencies during the year ended June 30, 2017. Total payments to other State 
agencies by the Fund were as follows for the year ended June 30, 2017: 

Medical University Hospital Authority $ 616,835 
University of South Carolina 26,318 
Workers Compensation Commission 20,500 
Department of Health & Environment Control 60 
PEBA Public Employees Benefit Authority 20 
Coastal Carolina University 10 
Secretary of State’s Office 8 

$ 663,751 

Note 16. Net Position 

The Fund has a net position deficit of $21,461,490 for governmental activities for the year ended June 30, 2017.  
In accordance with Section 42-7-200 the UEF was created to ensure payment of workers’ compensation benefits 
to injured employees whose employers have failed to procure necessary coverage for employees in accordance 
with the provisions of the workers’ compensation law. If the UEF is required to incur costs or expenses or to pay 
benefits, the UEF has a lien against the assets of the employer to the full extent of all costs. The UEF does not 
collect premiums, instead funds are earmarked from the collections of the tax on insurance carriers and self-
insured persons. Based upon the fact that the losses are paid prior to collections from the employer, if any, and 
the fact that the ultimate claim liability is paid as incurred, it is likely that the UEF will always have a deficit.  
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South Carolina State Accident Fund 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 17. Concentrations of Credit Risk and Other Concentrations 

The Fund has reinsurance contracts with providers which share or limit the Fund’s exposure to losses. However, 
should the reinsurance providers be unable to meet their obligations settlement of these amounts, the Fund will 
ultimately be responsible. The Fund provides services to South Carolina governmental entities. The limited 
make-up of the membership group, as well as the limited geographic region in which the Fund operates, increases 
the Fund’s exposure to business concentrations.  

Note 18. Subsequent Events 

The Fund has evaluated events and transactions occurring subsequent to the balance sheet date of June 30, 2017 
for items that should potentially be recognized or disclosed in the financial statements. The evaluation was 
conducted through September 27, 2017, the date these financial statements were available for issuance, and there 
were no subsequent events that required recognition or disclosure in these financial statements. 
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South Carolina State Accident Fund  
Budgetary Comparison Schedule (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis, Unaudited) 

Uninsured Employers Fund  
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017 

 

Budget  Amounts  

Original  Final 

Actual 
Amounts 

(Budgetary  

Basis) 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 

(Negative) 
Expenditures 
     Uninsured Employers Fund 

        Classified positions  $  255,544 $  255,544 $  396,207 $  (140,663) 
        Employer contributions  198,830  198,830  153,960  44,870 
        Other operating 468,540 468,540 163,625 304,915 
 Total Expenditures  $ 922,914  $  922,914   $ 713,792  $  209,122  
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South Carolina State Accident Fund 
Notes to Required Supplementary Information 

Budgetary Comparison Schedule 
June 30, 2017 

Note 1.  Budgetary Funds 

South Carolina’s Annual Appropriation Act, the State’s legally adopted budget, does not present budgets by GAAP 
fund. Instead, it presents program-level budgets for the following two funds: 

General Funds. These funds are general operating funds. The resources in the funds are primarily taxes. The 
State expends General Funds to provide traditional State government services. 

Total Funds. The Total Funds column in the Appropriations Act includes all budgeted resources. Amounts in 
this column include General Funds as well as most, but not all, federal and department-generated resources. Total 
funds include portions of certain proprietary and capital project fund activities as well as most special revenue 
activities but exclude the pension trust funds and some other fiduciary fund activities. 

The UEF’s legally adopted budget is part of the Total Funds budget for the State. It is presented for the UEF at the 
program level.   

Note 2. Original and Final Budgeted Amounts; Basis of Presentation 

The original appropriations presented in the accompanying schedule for the UEF include amounts in the 
Appropriations Act as well as any appropriation reductions specifically authorized by law to prevent duplicate 
appropriations. The terminology, classification, and format of the appropriations section of the accompanying 
schedule for department’s governmental fund are substantively the same as for the legally enacted budget. 

The State’s General Assembly does not approve estimated revenue or fund balance amounts for Other Budgeted 
Funds which include the UEF. However, Section 115 (Recapitulations) of the Appropriation Act includes net 
source of funds amounts (i.e. estimated cash brought forward from the previous fiscal year plus estimated revenue 
for the current fiscal year minus estimated cash to be carried forward to the following fiscal year) for three 
categories of Other Budgeted Funds: Federal, Earmarked, and Restricted. A budget versus actual comparison for 
the UEF is presented as required supplementary information.  

As operating conditions change, the UEF may move appropriations between programs and classifications within 
programs. However, limits are placed on increasing/decreasing authorizations for personal services without Budget 
and Control Board approval. Also, a revision of budgeted amounts over and above the total revenues appropriated 
requires approval of the Budget and Control Board. 

Note 3.  Legal Level of Budgetary Control 

The UEF maintains budgetary control at the level of summary objective category of expenditure within each program 
of each department or agency which is the level of detail presented in the accompanying schedule. 
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South Carolina State Accident Fund 
Notes to Required Supplementary Information 

Budgetary Comparison Schedule 
June 30, 2017 

Note 4.  Basis of Budgeting 

Current legislation states that the General Assembly intends to appropriate all monies to operate State government for 
the current fiscal year. Unexpended appropriations lapse on July 31 unless the department or agency is given specific 
authorization to carry them forward to the next fiscal year. Cash-basis accounting for payroll expenditures is used, 
while the accrual basis is used for other expenditures. 

State law does not precisely define the State’s basis of budgeting. In practice, however, it is the cash basis with the 
following exceptions: 

 Departments and agencies shall charge certain vendor and inter-fund payments against the preceding fiscal 
year’s appropriations through July 14th. 

 The gasoline and motor fuel taxes are recorded on the modified accrual basis in accordance with State law. 

 All other revenues are recorded only when the State receives the related cash. 

Note 5.  Reconciliation of Budget to GAAP Reporting Differences 

There are no adjustments of the GAAP basis of accounting to the budgetary basis of accounting for the UEF. 
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South Carolina State Accident Fund 
Schedule of the South Carolina State Accident Fund's 

Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability 
South Carolina Retirement System 

As of June 30, 
Last Three Fiscal Years 

SAF’s proportion of the net pension liability

SAF’s proportionate share of the net pension liability

SAF’s covered employee payroll
SAF’s proportionate share of the net pension liability as percentage of 
covered employee payroll
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension 
liability   

 $             5,890.620 

$              2,818.225 

0.027578 %

209.02 %

%

2017 

      0.029917 %

 $ 5,673,903 

$ 2,960,786 

191.64 %

 56.99 %

2016 

$ 

$ 

0.030111 % 

5,184,116 

2,873,871 

180.39 %

59.92 %

2015 

Note: The amounts presented above were determined as of June 30th of the preceding year. 

See accompanying Independent Auditor's Report 
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As of June 30, 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

South Carolina State Accident Fund 
Schedule of the South Carolina State Accident Fund's 

Contributions 
South Carolina Retirement System 

Contractually required contribution 
Contributions in relation to the contractually required 
contribution 
Contribution deficiency (excess) 

2017 2016 2015 
300,214$ 295,366$ 322,726$ 

300,214 295,366 322,726 
-$ -$ -$ 

$ 

$ 

2014 
289,775 

289,775 
-

$ 

$ 

2013 
349,382 

349,382 
-

SAF covered-employee payroll 
Contributions as a percentage of the covered employee 
payroll 

2,947,557$ 2,818,225$ 2,960,786$ 

11.41% 10.91% 10.75% 

$ 2,873,871 

10.45% 

$ 2,329,213 

10.45% 

Contractually required contribution 
Contributions in relation to the contractually required 
contribution 
Contribution deficiency (excess) 

2012 2011 2010 
323,282$ 327,100$ 333,835$ 

323,282 327,100 333,835 
-$ -$ -$ 

$ 

$ 

2009 
343,482 

343,482 
-

$ 

$ 

2008 
343,110 

343,110 
-

SAF covered-employee payroll 
Contributions as a percentage of the covered employee 
payroll 

2,362,309$ 2,489,346$ 2,641,100$ 

9.39% 9.24% 9.24% 

$ 2,696,091 

9.24% 

$ 2,749,279 

9.06% 

See accompanying Independent Auditor's Report 
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Scott and Company LLC 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

scottandco.com 

1441 Main Street, Suite 800 
Post Office Box 8388 
Columbia, South Carolina  29202 

TEL (803) 256-6021    FAX (803) 256-8346 

220 N. Main Street, Suite 500 
Greenville, South Carolina  29601 

TEL (864) 660-2045  

Independent Auditors’ Report on Internal Control over 
Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based 
on an Audit of Financial Statements performed in Accordance with 

Government Auditing Standards 

Mr. George L. Kennedy, III, CPA 
State Auditor 
State of South Carolina 
Columbia, South Carolina 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America 
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, business-type 
activities, and each major fund of the South Carolina State Accident Fund (the “Fund”) as of and for the year 
ended June 30, 2017, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Fund’s 
basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated September 27, 2017.   

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Fund’s internal control over 
financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances 
for the purposes of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the Fund’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Fund’s internal control.   

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect misstatements on a 
timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that 
there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the Fund’s financial statements will not be 
prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination 
of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit 
attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of the internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the 
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over financial 
reporting that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit 
we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be material 
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 



 

 
 

 
 

     
    

  
 

    
 

 
     

      
     

   
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Fund’s financial statements are free of material 
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and 
grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of 
financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an 
objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no 
instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the 
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on 
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not 
suitable for any other purposes 

Columbia, South Carolina 
September 27, 2017 
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